

---

**BellSouth Interconnection Services**

675 West Peachtree Street  
Atlanta, Georgia 30375

**Carrier Notification  
SN91085208**

Date: October 11, 2005

To: Competitive Local Exchange Carriers (CLEC)

Subject: CLECs – (Documentation/Guides) - Update to the BellSouth Local Ordering Handbook (LOH) Version 20.0a, New Local Service Ordering Guide 6 (LSOG 6) and EDI Local Mechanization Specifications 6 (ELMS 6) for Release 20.0

This is to advise that BellSouth has identified the following documentation defects in the LOH Version **20.0a** for ELMS 6 Release 20.0.

<b>CCP Number</b>	<b>Description Of The Change</b>
2291	EUA = D (Non-Complex On/Off Premises Extension/DPA): For Resale (Non-Complex) On/Off Premises Extensions/Different Premises Address (DPA) and UNE-P/WLP (Non-Complex) On/Off Premises Extensions/Different Premises Address (DPA) products. Situation 2 should have EUA = D not EUA = A.
2292	DACT field (DL Form/Screen): DACT When ACT = V; Correction to Conditional Usage Notes and Business Rules, to line up with feature 35147 (19.0).  WSOP field (EU Form/Screen): Correction to Working Service On Premises (WSOP) field: Documentation error – user requirement needs to match system requirement.

Please refer to the attachments for specific details of the changes listed above.

These changes will be reflected in the next update of the ELMS 6 Release 20.0/LOH Version **20.0b** scheduled to be posted Friday, November 4, 2005.

A summary of all changes within this document will be listed in the **Summary of Changes** section. This update can be found on the BellSouth Interconnection Services Web site in the Customer Guides Section at:

<http://www.interconnection.bellsouth.com/guides/html/leo.html>

Please contact your BellSouth local support manager with any questions.

Sincerely,

**ORIGINAL SIGNED BY KRISTEN E. SHORE**

Kristen E. Shore – Director  
BellSouth Interconnection Services

Attachments

**CCP 2291 Attachment Listed Below****20.0B-ELMS6****General Local Service Ordering Information section****REQTYP E (Complex)*****Resale (Non-Complex) On/Off Premises Extensions/Different Premise Address (DPA)*****Description:**

On / Off-Premises Extensions are extensions off main telephone service lines extended to a location contained within one building, or located in a different building at the same address or a different premises address

The types of On / Off-Premises Extensions are:

- On / Same Premises Extensions
- Off / Different Premises Extensions

On/ Same Premises Extensions-are channels extended to different locations on the same premises, not connected through the central office. These extensions may be in the same building or in a different building on the same continuous property.

On/Same Premises is described as:

- Building(s) together with surrounding land, used in the conduct of the business of one establishment, not intersected by a public thoroughfare or by property occupied by others.
- A situation where one end user occupies all the property
- One premises, with no public intersecting thoroughfares or property occupied by others.
- Portions of a building occupied by the end user not intersected by a public corridor or by a space occupied by others.

Off/Different Premises Extensions-are normally located at a different address from the end user's main service/primary service address, however extensions located in the same building but not on consecutive floors or at opposite ends of a floor with other offices located in between are considered Off Premises.

There are three (3) types of Off-Premises Extensions:

- Same-Wire Center
- Different Wire Center

**Service Restrictions:**

- TouchStar® Caller ID is not compatible with this product
- T (ACT=T) required when a end user wants to change the DPA to the primary location or the Primary Location to a DPA.
- Not recommended as mode of service for security systems.
- Off/Premise Extension Different Wire Center must be ordered via CRSG

**LSR Restrictions:**

- Limited to manual ordering
- Limited to REQ TYP E (Non-Complex)
- 1<sup>ST</sup> CHARACTER OF TOS must be 1 or 2
- Valid ACT=N, C, D, T, V and W
- Utilize REQ TYP E (Non-Complex) R/C/O tables when submitting request Resale On/Off Premise extensions
- LSO must be provided on LSR
- Multiple EU forms are required for address information

**Tariff Reference:**

General Subscriber Services Tariff (GSST) A13, A9, A4  
Private Line Tariff (PLT) B3

**USOC References:**

The table below provides the USOC's and brief description of the USOC that may be used for Resale Non-Complex On/Off Premises Extensions/Different Premise Address (DPA)

The USOC is entered in the FEATURE field on the Resale form/screen when ordering this product

USOC	DESCRIPTION
1LLBE	ON/ Same Premises Extension
1SE6Q	Different Premises Extension

**FID References:**

There are no unique FIDS to be populated by the customer on the LSR for this product.

**Situations/Exhibits:**

This section includes one or more ordering situations specific or unique to this product/process. The exhibit is not intended to depict an LSR package in its entirety. The situations below do not depict actual field formatting. The customer should review the field data dictionary for business rule and field application.

**Situation 1:** CLEC is requesting new Resale residence service type with Off/ Different Premise Extension.

Primary address is 125 main street

DPA is 126 main street

**Note:** 2 EU forms will be required (one for primary address information, one for DPA address information)

**LSR**

REQTYP=E

ACT=N

LSO=NPANXX (populate the DPA LSO in this field)

MEU=A

**EU**

1<sup>st</sup> EU form=Primary Address Information

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYTYP/ACT combination

2<sup>nd</sup> EU form=On/Off Premise Address/DPA information

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYTYP/ACT combination
- EUA=A

**Resale Service Form**

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYTYP/ACT combination
- FA=N
- FEATURE=1SE6Q

**Situation 2:** CLEC is requesting to disconnect the On/Same Premise Extension portion of an existing account.

Primary address is 125 main Street

DPA is 125 main Street

**Note:** 2 EU forms will be required (one for primary address information, one for DPA address information)

**LSR**

REQTYP=E

ACT=C

LSO=NPANXX (populate the DPA LSO in this field)

MEU=A

**EU**

1<sup>st</sup> EU form=Primary Address Information

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYTYP/ACT combination

2<sup>nd</sup> EU form=On/Off Premise Address/DPA information

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYTYP/ACT combination
- EUA=D

Deleted: A

**Resale Service Form**

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYTYP/ACT combination
- FA=D
- FEATURE=1LLBE

**Related Topics/Information:**

None

**REQTYP M (Complex)*****UNE-P/WLP (Non-Complex) On/Off Premises  
Extensions/Different Premise Address (DPA)*****Description:**

On/Off Premises Extensions stations utilize two (2) or more voice grade loops and possibly dedicated interoffice transport to extend a 2-wire Voice Grade Port and Voice Grade Loop combination station beyond the CLEC end user's primary service address.

**Service Restrictions:**

- Prohibited for InterLATA jurisdiction
- Available in BellSouth serving areas only (i.e; the combination will not be jointly provided with other local exchange companies, Independent companies or CLEC's)
- Must have a working primary line
- Not compatible with Caller ID
- Must be included in interconnection agreement prior to ordering this product

**LSR Restrictions:**

- Limited to manual ordering
- Limited to REQTYP M (Switched Combinations UNE-P/WLP RES/BUS)
- 1<sup>ST</sup> CHARACTER OF TOS must be 1 or 2
- Valid ACT=N, C, D, and V
- Utilize REQTYP M (Non-Complex Switched Combinations UNE-P/WLP RES/BUS) R/C/O tables when submitting request UNE-P/WLP On/Off Premise extensions
- LSO must be provided on LSR
- Multiple EU forms are required for address information

**Tariff Reference:**

N/A

**USOC References:**

Please refer to CLEC interconnection agreement for applicable USOC's.  
The applicable USOC(s) should be populated in the FEATURE field.

**FID References:**

There are no unique FIDS to be populated by the customer on the LSR for this product.

**Situations/Exhibits:**

This section includes one or more ordering situations specific or unique to this product/process. The exhibit is not intended to depict an LSR package in its entirety. The situations below do not depict actual field formatting. The customer should review the field data dictionary for business rule and field application.

**Situation 1:** CLEC is requesting new UNE-P/WLP Switched Combination residence service type with On/Off Premise Extension.

Primary address is 125 main street

DPA is 126 main street

**Note:** 2 EU forms will be required (one for primary address information, one for DPA address information)

**LSR**

REQTYP=M

ACT=N

LSO=NPANXX (populate the DPA LSO in this field)

MEU=A

**EU**

1<sup>st</sup> EU form=Primary Address Information

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYP/ACT combination
- 2<sup>nd</sup> EU form=On/Off Premise Address/DPA information
- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYP/ACT combination
  - EUA=A

**Port Service Form**

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYP/ACT combination
- FA=N
- FEATURE=UEAEN

**Note:** On/Off Premise Extension/DPA USOC must be valid in interconnection agreement.

**Situation 2:** CLEC is requesting to disconnect the On/Off Premise Extension portion of an existing account.

Primary address is 125 main street

DPA is 126 main street

**Note:** 2 EU forms will be required (one for primary address information, one for DPA address information)

**LSR**

REQTYP=M

ACT=C

LSO=NPANXX (populate the DPA LSO in this field)

MEU=A

**EU**

1<sup>st</sup> EU form=Primary Address Information

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYP/ACT combination
- 2<sup>nd</sup> EU form=On/Off Premise Address/DPA information

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYP/ACT combination

• EUA=**D**

Deleted: **A**

**Port Service Form**

- Populate all R/C/O fields applicable for REQTYP/ACT combination
- FA=D
- FEATURE=UEAEN

**Note:** On/Off Premise Extension/DPA USOC must be valid in interconnection agreement.

**Related Topics/Information:**

None



## CCP 2292 Attachment Listed Below

### 20.0B-ELMS6

#### DACT

Delivery Activity  
DL Form / Screen  
LSOG6 / ELMS6

#### Definition

Identifies the delivery activity for this request.

#### Valid Entries

N = New Directory Delivery

#### Data Characteristics

1 alpha character

#### Examples

N

#### Conditional Usage Notes

- # 1 Prohibited when the CC or the NNSP field is populated with a wireless OCN.
- # 2 Required when any other field in the Delivery Address/Information section is populated.
- # 3 Prohibited when the 4th character of the TOS is R.

# 4 DACT is required when ACT=V and an N order will be generated, when the service address is unnumbered. (Example: Partial migration to a new account).

#5 DACT is required when ACT=V and a C order will be generated, when the existing directory delivery address on the customer record is not fully formatted, and the service address is unnumbered. (Example: Full migration to a new account).

#### Business Rules


- # 1 DACT allowed once per LSR.
- # 2 When the DACT field is not populated ACT = N or T, then the directory delivery name and address will default from the fields on the EU form for end user name and service address.




#3 When ACT=V, and when an N order will be generated, and the existing directory delivery address on the customer record is not fully formatted, and the service address is not unnumbered, the name will default from the EU form and the address will default from the existing end user service address. (Example: Partial migration to a new account).

#4 When ACT=V, and a C order will be generated, and the existing directory delivery address on the customer record is not fully formatted, and the service address is not unnumbered, the name will default from the EU form and the address will default from the existing end user service address. (Example: Full migration to a new account).

#### Deleted: ¶

**Deleted:** # . 4 . (Excluding Remote Call Forwarding (RCF)) For REQTYP E (Non-Complex) or M (Non-Complex) when one of the ¶ following conditions exist this field is: Required when ACT=V, MI=A and the end users service address is indefinite or ¶ unnumbered; Required when ACT=V, MI=C, changing from RES to BUS or BUS to RES and the end users service ¶ address is indefinite or unnumbered.¶

#  For REQ TYP "J", with ACT=R, when the DIRQTYA or DIRQTYNC field is populated the DACT must be "N".

**Deleted:** #  3  On ACT is V with MI is A, the name will default from the EU form and the address will default from the existing end  user service address.

**Deleted:**  4

**20.0B-ELMS6****WSOP**

Working Service on Premises  
EU Form / Screen  
LSOG6 / ELMS6

**Definition**

Indicates if there is a working service at the end user location that needs to be disconnected.

**Definition Notes**

Note 1: If the end user name is the same as the interfering station service name, then it does not qualify as an abandon station.

Note 2: When WSOP is populated with "V", this indicates that the CLEC has confirmed with their end user that the existing line is an Abandoned Station.

**Valid Entries**

V = Abandon Station; results in disconnection of the interfering service.

**Valid Entry Notes**

None

**Data Characteristics**

1 alpha character

**Examples**

V

**Conditional Usage Notes**

Note 1: Optional when the 1st character of the TOS field is 2 and the REQTYP is E (Non-Complex) or M (Non-Complex), otherwise prohibited.

**Business Rules**

Rule 1: For additional information on WSOP and ADL, please refer to the section in the LOH titled: Abandoned Stations/Additional Line.

**Rule 2: When REQTYP = E or M (Non-Complex), and ACT = N, or T, when the WSOP field is populated, ADL is not required on the same TN.**

\*\*\*\*\* End of definition for field WSOP \*\*\*\*\*